
OF wavy MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

L 99o CITY OF HAYWARD PLANNING COMMISSION

Council Chambers

Thursday March 11 2010730pm

cgUFORP
777 B Street Hayward CA 94541

MEETING

The regular meeting of the Hayward Planning Commission was called to order at730pm by
Chair Mendall

ROLL CALL

Present COMMISSIONERS Marquez Loche Peixoto Lavelle Thnay
CHAIRPERSON Mendall

Absent COMMISSIONER McKillop

Commissioner Thnay led in the Pledge ofAllegiance

StaffMembers Present Alvarado Emura Koonze Patenaude Philis

General Public Present 7

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

Planning Manager Richard Patenaude introduced Deputy City Attorney Rafael Alvarado filling in
for Assistant City Attorney Maureen Conneely who was on vacation

PUBLIC HEARING

1 Conditional Use Permit Application No PL20070195 Jeanette Conde Royal
Chemical Company Applicant Penta Properties LLC Owner Request for the
Outdoor Storage of Plastic Chemical Containers The Property Is Located at 2498

American Avenue

Associate Planner Carl Emura gave abrief synopsis ofthe report noting that staff received one letter

expressing concern about the chemicals stored onsite Staff provided the person with a list of

chemicals as well as acopy ofthe staff report and no further comments or questions were received

Commissioner Lavelle thanked staff for the report and noted that when she drove by the site she
noticed there were a lot ofstray cats in the area She asked staff to contact Animal Control to see if

there is anything that can be done

Commissioner Loche said the report indicated that a conditional use permit CUP is required if

storage exceeds 10 ofthe outside area and asked what percent is being used at Royal Chemical
Mr Emura replied that Royal Chemical doesnthave a lot ofyard area he calculated there is about

10000 feet ofstorage area but he didnthave an exact percentage Mr Emura said it is visibly clear
that more than 10ofthe outside area is being used

DRAFT 1



Commissioner Marquez confirmed with staff that the CUP would require that the containers not

exceed the height of the fence Mr Emura said the taller containers could be kept behind the

building and other stacked containers lowered Commissioner Marquez asked how many people are

currently employed by Royal Chemical and staff said the owner could answer that question She also

confirmed that the public inquiry regarding the contents ofthe containers was received in 2007 and
there haventbeen any new comments Planning Manager Richard Patenaude explained that the

referral notice originally went out in 2007 The latest referral from March 2010 generated no

comments he said

Chair Mendall confirmed with staff that the fire department has approved the storage of all the
chemicals on site and if in the future any are found to be hazardous the conditions ofapproval
would allow the City to reconsider the use permit Planning Manager Patenaude confirmed that both
the conditions of approval and the zoning ordinance would allow the City to recall the permit if

necessary

There being no public comments Chair Mendall opened and closed the Public Hearing at740pm

The Commissioners asked if the applicant was in the audience Executive Vice President Jeanette

Conde identified herself and in response to Chair Mendalls concern stated that Royal Chemical has
all City permits in place at all times

Commissioner Marquez asked Ms Conde if there would be any problem lowering the containers
below the fence height Ms Conde said she wasntsure at what angle the photographs were taken
but the containers are not stacked She said once the slates are added to the fence from the street the

containers should be at or lower than the fence height She assured the Commission that the area is

very industrial and if the top ofthe containers were visible from the street it would not deter from

the area In response to Commissioner Marquez Ms Conde said Royal Chemical employs 22 full
time and four parttimeemployees

Commissioner Peixoto asked Ms Conde to describe the business and the type of chemicals stored
Ms Conde explained that Royal Chemical is acontract manufacturer making cleaning products for

many industries including the food and hitech industry janitorial products personal care products
like shampoos and lotions including industrial and institutional products Commissioner Peixoto

asked Ms Conde what is meant by the term chemical detergent compound Ms Conde explained
that they make products used in the home including laundry soap and commercial laundry cleaning
products They also manufacture chemicals used in the hitech industry to produce microchips
When Commissioner Peixoto expressed concern of any onsite hazards Ms Conde reassured the
Commission that all chemicals are registered and permitted and that Royal provides the City with a

report on an annual basis She said that Royal Chemical is extremely responsible and that they
understand the concerns ofthe community and do everything necessary as amatter ofpride for the
business

Chair Mendall asked how the need for the permit could have missed for so long Ms Conde

explained that is has always been the companys intent to secure all permits In 2007 as part of a

planned expansion Royal Chemical came before the Planning Commission and found out about the
conditional use permit requirement for outside storage The expansion didnthappen Ms Conde

explained but they wanted to move forward with the outstanding matter of the CUP Ms Conde

DRAFT
2



OF wavy MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

L 99o CITY OF HAYWARD PLANNING COMMISSION

Council Chambers

Thursday March 11 2010730pm

cgUFORP
777 B Street Hayward CA 94541

added that the original company was opened in 1965 and over the years they have expanded from

one to four buildings and somewhere along the line the issue just got missed

Ms Conde asked Commissioner Marquez if it would be an issue if the height ofthe containers did

exceed the top of the fence Commissioner Marquez deferred the question to staff and Planning
Manager Patenaude said it was not likely to be an issue

Commissioner Peixoto made a motion to approve staff recommendation and find the proposed
project Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act CEQA Guidelines
Section 15301 Existing Facilities and 15303 New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures
and approve the Use Permit application subject to the findings and conditions of approval
Commissioner Thnay seconded the motion

There being no other comments the motion passed601with the following vote

AYES Commissioners Marquez Loche Peixoto Lavelle Thnay
Chair Mendall

NOES None

ABSENT Commissioners McKillop
ABSTAINED None

2 Conditional Use Permit Application NoPL20090534UPS Ground Applicant
Owner Request to Operate an Auto Auction with Outdoor Vehicle Storage The

Property Is Located at 2348 Industrial Parkway West

Associate Planner Tim Koonze gave abrief synopsis ofthe report

Commissioner Lavelle thanked staff and asked if gasoline was going to be dispensed on site Mr

Koonze said that was never brought up and suggested she ask the applicant Commissioner Lavelle

asked if the donated cars were going to be washed on site Staffagain suggested she ask the

applicant

Commissioner Thnay thanked stafffor the report and said he supported the condition requiring
increased and better landscaping in front ofthe site He pointed out thatnonindustrial traffic has

increased due to the new Costco and the Eden Shoreline development and better landscaping would

improve the overall look ofthe area He suggested that all projects moving forward should put more

effort into improving their landscaping Commissioner Thnay asked if the City had received

landscape designs for this application Mr Koonze said the landscape areas indicated onthe plans
are conceptual and that the detailed landscape plans would be provided at a later date and reviewed

by the Citys Landscape Architect to ensure the plans complies with all ordinances Commissioner

Thnay asked why the cost ofthe transaction fee for each carcoming into the site is only 2 Mr

Koonze said the City used the same fee schedule as is currently used for the Bay Cities Auto

Auction A full analysis ofservices was done when Bay Cities expanded Mr Koonze explained and

2 was a fair value Commissioner Thnay said that amount seems low given the wearand tear on

DRAFT



City streets but Mr Koonze pointed outthat the City also receives property tax revenue from the
site and other taxes even though it is not aretail site

Chair Mendall asked when the 2 per car fee was set Mr Koonze said approximately seven to eight
years ago Chair Mendall said he wanted to ask the applicant the estimated volume ofcars per year

Commissioner Loche said he wanted to ask the applicant if vehicles are repaired onsite

There being no public comments Chair Mendall opened and closed the Public Hearing at802pm

James Harley with All Cities Permit Services representing the applicant Desert View Auto

Auctions Inc said the applicant has many charity auto auctions throughout the state and that they
were happy to answer any questions or concerns Mr Harley corrected an error in the report saying
that UPS is the property owner and that Joseph and Sean Mulcahy ofDesert View Auto Auctions
Inc is the applicant Staff indicated the correction would be made

Chair Mendall asked how many cars per year would be processed at the site Mr Harley indicated

that at least 300 cars per week are processed The cars are donated for charity he explained and
Desert View takes them sells them and gives agreat portion back to charity Itworks out for

everyone Mr Harley said

Commissioner Loche asked ifthe cars are repaired on site Mr Harley said no whatyou see is

what you gef Mr Harley explained that the vehicles are not washed or fueled on site either Desert

View is simply aprocessing service

Commissioner Marquez asked if they are relocatingfrom San Leandro Boulevard in Oakland and
owner Joseph Mulcahy indicated that their current location is on High Street in Oakland

Commissioner Marquez asked if the relocation would create any new job opportunities in Hayward
Mr Mulcahy said they have about 25 employees now and Mr Harley explained that the Hayward
site is much larger and they will definitely be hiring more people Commissioner Marquez also

confirmed with the owner that the tents used the day ofthe auction were owned by the applicant and

not rented

Mr Harley said he appreciated the welcome he received from the City and said the last six months

ofworking with staff has been wonderful

Commissioner Marquez made a motion to approve staff recommendation and find the proposed
project Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act CEQA Guidelines
Section 15301 Existing Facilities and approve the conditional use permit subject to the findings
and conditions of approval and to direct staff to correct the applicant name in Planning files

Commissioner Lavelle seconded the motion

Speaking to the motion Commissioner Marquez said this is agood project and that she was pleased
to hear it could bring new jobs to the City and that it appears to be awellrun organization She

pointed out that under the conditions of approval if there are any problems with the auction site the

City can call the owner and the Commission can review the findings

Commissioner Lavelle wished the applicant good luck in Hayward and encouraged employees to

DRAFT
4



OF wavy MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

L 99o CITY OF HAYWARD PLANNING COMMISSION

Council Chambers

Thursday March 11 2010730pm

cgUFORP
777 B Street Hayward CA 94541

move here from Oakland and that they and any new employees should shop at Haywards new

Costco which is right around the corner She also fully concurred with Commissioner Thnays
earlier comment that improved landscaping is important and encouraged the applicant to do

whatever they can to improve the attractiveness of the area Commissioner Lavelle concluded by
welcoming Desert View and thanking them for their business

Chair Mendall said he supported the motion and agreed with his fellow Commissioners that even

though this is an industrial zone the City does care how it looks and he encouraged the applicant to

give some attention to the landscaping especially along Industrial Boulevard

There being no other comments the motion passed601with the following vote

AYES Commissioners Marquez Loche Peixoto Lavelle Thnay
Chair Mendall

NOES None

ABSENT Commissioners McKillop
ABSTAINED None

3 Adjusting the Time for Planning Commission Meetings

Planning Manager Richard Patenaude gave abriefsynopsis ofthe report indicating this was

suggested at aprior meeting to coincide with the City Council moving their start time to 7pm

Commissioner Lavelle pointed out that she initially did notfavor the earlier start but is now quite
content to bend to the will ofthe rest ofthe Commissioners and said she will arrive promptly at 7

pm if it is changed

Commissioner Peixoto said he fully supports the change because it gives an element oftransparency
as all ofthe work sessions will be televised and that is great for the community He thanked Chair
Mendall for the suggestion

There being no public comments Chair Mendall opened and closed the Public Hearing at807pm

Chair Mendall confirmed with Deputy City Attorney Alvarado that the Commission should make an

official motion for the record and not just call for averbal consent

Chair Mendall made a motion to approve the staff recommendation to adjust the time for regular
meetings to 7pm effective April 8 2010 Commissioner Peixoto seconded the motion

There being no other comments the motion passed601with the following vote

AYES Commissioners Marquez Loche Peixoto Lavelle Thnay
Chair Mendall

NOES None

DRAFT



ABSENT Commissioners McKillop
ABSTAINED None

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

4 Oral Report on Planning and Zoning Matters

Planning Manager Patenaude said the neat regular meeting scheduled for March 25 will still begin
at730pm so staff has enough time to notify the public ofthe time change Chair Mendall pointed
out that they have awork session which begins at630pmMr Patenaude said atthat work session
the Commissioners will see an overview ofthe Mission Boulevard Specific Plan and at the regular
meeting making a recommendation on the Historic Preservation Program Mr Patenaude said that
no meetings are currently scheduled for April At a work session on May 13 Mr Patenaude said

the Commissioner will be looking at the South Hayward BART formbased code project and at the

regular meeting making a recommendation on the Capital Improvement Project Chair Mendall
asked if the formbased code discussion was going to include the park study and Mr Patenaude said

he thought so

5 Commissioners Announcements Referrals

Commissioner Thnay reminded the others that St Clements School will be celebrating their 50
Golden Anniversary on March 26 with agala celebration He invited the Commissioners to attend

Chair Mendall encouraged Commissioner Lavelle to share a comment she made to him regarding a

Planning Commission guide booklet she recently received from staff Commissioner Lavelle said
when she was Chair staff provided some general training materials to her and now to Chair

Mendall that she found helpful and wondered if the other Commissioners would be interested in

holding a work session to discuss the material which include such topics as followups after a

contentious meetings and how they could best serve the public and respond to the community

Mr Patenaude suggested a work session in April since there are no projects scheduled for review

Chair Mendall supported that idea and suggested Apri122datthe new start time of700pm

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

6 Minutes from January 28 2010 were unanimously approved

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Mendall adjourned the meeting at815pm

APPROVED

Elisa Marquez Secretary
Planning Commissioner

DRAFT
6



OF wavy MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

L 99o CITY OF HAYWARD PLANNING COMMISSION

Council Chambers

Thursday March 11 2010730pm

cgUFORP
777 B Street Hayward CA 94541

ATTEST

Suzanne Philis Senior Secretary
Office ofthe City Clerk

DRAFT


